
Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  1 

Dubuque County Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Minutes of August 2, 2016  

Chairperson Pat Hickson called the meeting to order at 7 p.m. 

 

A. ROLL CALL: Members Present:  Ron Koppes, Darlene Burds, Connie Nolan, & Pat 

Hickson. Staff Present:  Anna O’Shea & Angela Steffens 

 

B.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  A motion was made by Mr. Koppes, seconded by Ms. 

Nolan and passed unanimously to approve the Minutes of the July 5, 2016 meeting.  

Vote: 4-0.  

 

C.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

1. BA#07-29-16          JAMES & NANETTE HERBST  VARIANCE 

(Tabled from the July 5, 2016 meeting) 

The applicants are requesting an 11’ right side variance to the 20’ required to build a 15’ 

x 24’ deck for their pool 9’ from the property line in an R-2, Single Family Residential 

zoning district. The property, located along Kruse Lane approximately 1.74 miles 

northwest of the City of Sageville, is legally described as Lot 10 Sleepy Hollow Estates 

Section 20, (T90N R2E) Peru Township, Dubuque County Iowa. 

 

Ms. O’Shea stated that this property is 3.9 acres with a home. The property owners put in 

a pool and found out they needed to be 10’ away from the septic system for the deck. 

This will require the deck to be built on the right side of the pool instead of the left. Ten 

letters were sent, nine were delivered and the City of Sageville was notified. 

 

There were four comments submitted regarding this case.  

 

Bill & Vicki Arnold (neighbor to the right), 20300 Kruse Lane, Sherrill. They stated they 

cannot control the future use of the variance and feel there is enough land on the lots to 

not need a variance.  

 

Roger Barth (neighbor to the left), 20340 Kruse Lane, Sherrill. He stated he is against 

variance and feels the lots are large enough not to need a variance.  

 

Brian Cose, 20335 Kruse Lane, Sherrill. He stated as the facts have been presented the 

property dimensions for the homeowners in the subdivision are sizable enough that 

variance should not be needed.  

 

Tyler Kelsch, 20299 Kruse Lane, Sherrill. He stated he is against the variance and feels 

the proposed structure will detract from property value and should be kept hidden within 

the 20’ setback.  

 

Speaking to the Board was James & Nanette Herbst, 20320 Kruse Lane, Sherrill. Mr. 

Hickson administered the following Oath asking the participants to raise their right hand.  

“Do you solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 

truth?”  They said yes. 

 

Mr. Herbst stated they put in a pool not knowing they could not build the deck around the 

septic tank. The deck will have to go on the right and that is why they are not within the 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  2 

20’ setback. According the county maps, it shows they would be within the setback but 

once they found the pins which shows they would not be, building the deck within the 

20’ setback required they applied for a variance. 

 

Ms. Nolan asked if they received a permit for the pool? Mr. Herbst said since it is an 

above ground pool a permit is not needed. Ms. O’Shea said that is correct, if it is an 

above ground pool it has no structure to it so it is allowed to be put anywhere on the 

property. If it is partially in the ground is an or in ground pool, it would have to meet 

setbacks and it would require a permit.  

 

Ms. Burds asked if the deck has to be 15’ x 24’? Mr. Herbst said it does not have to be 

but that is the size they would like to have.  

 

Mr. Hickson asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against this case? 

 

Speaking to the Board was William Arnold, 20300 Kruse Lane, Sherrill.  Mr. Hickson 

administered the following Oath asking the participant to raise his right hand.  “Do you 

solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?”  He 

said yes. 

 

Mr. Arnold stated he walked the property line with Mr. Herbst to help with the 

measurements. He said the pool was done nicely. He has since changed his view and is 

now opposed to the variance request. One reason is he feels if the variance were granted, 

it opens it to the possibility of an in ground pool being able to be put in that would be 

permanent. The other is he spoke to the neighbors that were notified and they thought if it 

were their property lines, they would want to be involved. He feels the lots are large 

enough and he understands why the pool was placed where it was. 

 

Mr. Hickson asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against this case? No one 

spoke.  

 

Mr. Koppes asked if they plan to build the deck if a variance is granted? Mr. Herbst said 

they started purchasing wood and it would depend on the cost.   

 

Ms. Burds asked what size of deck would you need in order to not need a variance? Mr. 

Herbst said 13’ x 15’ which would shorten the deck by 11’. He was told if the deck was 

connected to the pool, it makes the pool a permanent structure and has to meet setbacks. 

Ms. O’Shea said that is not correct. That would pertain to in ground pools. The things 

that restrict the deck is the distance from the septic and the setbacks for the lot.  

 

Mr. Herbst asked if they take down the pool and deck in the future would the variance go 

away? Mr. Hickson said yes.  

 

Mr. Arnold reapproached the Board and asked if the pool is removed and the deck is left 

standing does the variance stay active? Ms. O’Shea said yes because the deck is still 

standing because that is what the county would permit. Although, the next owner would 

not be able to expand what was granted without another variance.  

 

Mr. Arnold asked if the deck is removed, does the original variance go away? Mr. 

Hickson said they would have to apply for a new variance if they change the size or it is 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  3 

removed. Ms. O’Shea unless it is taken down and replaced in the same place and same 

size within a short amount of time, then it could be replaced.   

 

Ms. Burds asked if Mr. Herbst would consider reducing the size of the deck? Mr. Herbst 

said if he is going to build a deck, he wants the 15’ x 24’ deck. Otherwise, it would not 

look right and that was what the neighbors were concerned about.  

 

Mr. Koppes stated he is concerned about the fact that Mr. Herbst is not sure he is going to 

build the deck?  Mr. Herbst said with having to move the deck to the opposite side of the 

pool, the cost as increased at that is the factor they have to consider. 

 

A motion was made by Ms. Burds, seconded by Ms. Nolan to deny the variance.  The 

motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-0. 

 

2. BA#08-31-16             BRIAN & LISA WOLF    VARIANCE 

The applicants are requesting a 42’ right side yard variance to the 50’ required to plat an 

existing home & garage 8’ from the right side yard to bring the property into compliance 

as a 1 acre lot for health and zoning requirements in an A-1, Agricultural zoning district. 

The property, located along North Bankston Rd approximately 1.12 miles north of the 

City of Bankston, is legally described as Lot 2-1 SE ¼ NE ¼, Lot 2 SE ¼ NE ¼ and Lot 

2-1-1 SE ¼ NE ¼ all in Section 9, (T89N R1W) Iowa Township, Dubuque County Iowa.  

 

Ms. O’Shea stated the home was built in 1894 on two lots with .54 acres. The garage was 

added in 2006. The garage was built over the original property line. Now the owners 

want to sell the home on the 1 acre property is sits on. Four letters were sent, four letters 

were delivered and the City of Bankston was notified. There were no comments 

submitted in regards to this case.  

 

Speaking to the Board was Brian Wolf, 24219 N Bankston Rd, Epworth. Mr. Hickson 

administered the following Oath asking the participant to raise his right hand.  “Do you 

solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?”  He 

said yes. 

 

Mr. Wolf stated he owns the land surrounding the home and purchased the home in 2000. 

They found out that the home was originally built over the lot lines and they need to meet 

the setbacks in order to plat off the home from the rest of the ground for sale purposes.  In 

order to sell the property he needs an acre to meet the zoning and health requirements to 

plat the property. The acre would follow an old fence line that follows the cropland and 

will not disturb any tillable ground.  

 

Mr. Hickson asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against this case? No one 

spoke.  

 

A motion was made by Ms. Burds, seconded by Ms. Nolan to approve the variance. 

The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-0. 

 

3. BA#08-32-16    MARK & STACI MCKEON/YVONNE MCKEON VARIANCE 

The applicants are requesting an 8’6” height variance to the 14’ required to replace an 

existing garage with a new 30’ x 50’ garage 8’6” taller than the primary structure in an R-

2, Single Family Residential zoning district. The property, located along N Cascade Road 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  4 

approximately .41 miles north of the City of Dubuque, is legally described as Lot 1 

McKeon Place Section 7, (T88N R2E) Table Mound Township, Dubuque County Iowa.  

 

Ms. O’Shea stated this property is 13.29 acres with two homes. The homeowners would 

like to replace the existing 30’ x 40’ shed with a new two story 30’ x 50’ shed. Twenty-

seven letters were sent, twenty-six were delivered and the City of Dubuque was notified. 

There were no comments submitted regarding this case.  

 

Speaking to the Board was Mark McKeon, 10816 Golden Oaks Dr, Dubuque. Mr. 

Hickson administered the following Oath asking the participant to raise his right hand.  

“Do you solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 

truth?”  He said yes. 

 

Mr. McKeon stated the existing building is in poor condition and he would like to replace 

it with a two story building for storage. It would extend the back of the building by 10’ 

feet for a place for his children to play basketball and tennis.  

 

Ms. Burds asked Mr. McKeon why it has to be so tall? Mr. McKeon said he has an apple 

orchard adjacent to the building and he will need to get a full size tractor into the 

building. He would like to park vehicles in the building and have storage on the second 

story.  

 

Mr. Koppes asked Mr. McKeon if he had started the new building already? Mr. McKeon 

said no. Mr. Koppes said it looks like he has moved a lot of dirt already. 

 

Ms. Burds asked how many acres is the current lot? Ms. O’Shea said about 13.29 acres.  

 

Mr. Hickson asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against this case? No one  

spoke.  

 

Ms. Nolan asked if anyone else in the neighborhood had buildings of this size? Mr. 

McKeon said this building sits down in a valley and would not be set close to the road. 

He said there is one building not far that is about the same.  

 

A motion was made by Mr. Koppes, seconded by Ms. Burds to approve the variance 

with the condition that the accessory building is for personal use only with no 

business use is allowed. The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-0. 
 

4. BA#08-33-16               JEROME & LAVONNE SPIEGEL           VARIANCES 

The applicants are requesting a 45’ left side yard variance to the 50’ required to build 5’ 

from the left side yard and a 5’ rear yard variance to the 50’ required to build a 60’ x 30’ 

attached storage shed 45’ from the rear yard in an R-1, Rural Residential zoning district. 

The property, located along Sundown Road approximately .46 miles north of the City of 

Centralia, is legally described as Lot 2-2-1 NE ¼ NW ¼ Section 34, (T89N R1E) Center 

Township, Dubuque County Iowa. 

 

Ms. O’Shea stated this lot is .51 acres and the Spiegel’s own an additional 11 acres 

around the home. The Spiegel’s want to add a 30’ x 60’ shed attached to the home. They 

were granted a 45’ side yard variance in 2012 to build a 24’ x 54’ shed that was never 

built, now they are asking to build a 30’ x 60’ shed. Five letters were sent, five were 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  5 

delivered and the City of Centralia was notified. There were no comments submitted in 

regards to this case.   

 

Speaking to the Board was Jerome Spiegel, 12979 Sundown Rd, Peosta. Mr. Hickson 

administered the following Oath asking the participant to raise his right hand.  “Do you 

solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?”  He 

said yes. 

 

Mr. Spiegel stated that this is the only location on the property to place the building 

because the well is behind the house and the septic is in the front yard. He put solar 

panels on the home and would like to move them to the new shed so they would be more 

efficient.  

 

Mr. Hickson asked Mr. Spiegel what his plans were for the shed? Mr. Spiegel said he was 

going to store antique tractors and use it for storage and as his garage. 

 

Mr. Hickson asked how large the current garage was on the home? Mr. Spiegel said the 

current garage is 14’ x 26’ and they are going convert that into a remodeled kitchen.   

 

Mr. Hickson asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against this case? No one  

spoke.  

 

Ms. Burds asked if there was going to be a bathroom in the new shed? Mr. Spiegel said 

no.  

 

A motion was made by Mr. Koppes, seconded by Mr. Hickson to approve the variances 

with the condition the new building is for personal use. The motion was denied by a 

vote of 2-2. Mr. Koppes and Mr. Hickson voted to approve. Ms. Burds and Ms. 

Nolan voted to deny. 

 

Mr. Spiegel asked why he was denied this time when the last time he was approved. Mr. 

Hickson asked why he did not build the last time? Mr. Spiegel stated things got busy for 

him and they ended up putting solar panels on the home. He asked the Board to 

reconsider. Ms. O’Shea said with the same group could reconsider but the a motion 

would have to made by a person who voted against the motion made by Mr. Koppes. Ms. 

Burds feels the building size is too big. Ms. O’Shea told Mr. Spiegel he can stop at the 

Zoning Office later to see what his options are. 

 

5. BA#08-34-16                       DLTTLD LLC   VARIANCE 

The applicants are requesting a 4’ variance from the primary structure to the 8’ required 

to build a 12’ x 24’ storage shed 4’ from the primary structure in a B-1, Business zoning 

district. The property, located along Key West Drive approximately .14 miles south of the 

City of Dubuque, is legally described as Lot 1-2-6 NE ¼ SE ¼ Section 11, (T88N R2E) 

Table Mound Township, Dubuque County Iowa.  

 

Ms. O’Shea stated this commercial lot is .47 acres and has a 40’ x 60’ building and the 

property owner would like to add another 12’ x 24’ building behind the existing building. 

Thirteen letters were sent, thirteen letters were delivered and the City of Dubuque was 

notified. There were no comments submitted regarding this case.  

 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  6 

Speaking to the Board was Steve Ryan, 853 Dorothy Kay, Dubuque. Mr. Hickson 

administered the following Oath asking the participant to raise his right hand.  “Do you 

solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?”  He 

said yes. 

 

Mr. Hickson asked what business occupies the building currently? Mr. Ryan said it is a 

antique seller. He would like to build a shed that sits on the ground behind the current 

building. 

 

Ms. Nolan asked what would be put in the building? Mr. Ryan said lawn mowing 

equipment. 

 

Ms. Nolan asked about the other buildings on the property? Mr. Ryan said there is only 

one building on the property currently and the other property is a separate entity.  

 

Ms. Nolan said the antique store occupies the front half of the building so what is in the 

other half? Mr. Ryan said air. 

 

Mr. Hickson said it seems like a large shed for lawn mowing equipment. Mr. Ryan said it 

is a for a 4720 John Deere full size tractor.  

 

Ms. Nolan asked what Mr. Ryan was going to use the lawn mower for? Mr. Ryan said it 

is a toy that he is going to store and use on the property. 

 

Mr. Hickson asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against this case? No one  

spoke.  

 

Ms. Nolan asked if there was any water or sewer for the building? Mr. Ryan stated there 

is city water and sewer available but not hooked up to the building currently. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Koppes, seconded by Ms. Burds to approve the variance 

with the condition that the building is for storage only. The motion passed 

unanimously by a vote of 4-0. 
 

6. BA#08-35-16 MICHAEL & JACQUELINE MERFELD VARIANCE 

The applicants are requesting a 35’ front street line variance to the 80’ required to build a 

8’ x 30’6” porch 45’ from the front street line Bernard Road in a R-1, Rural Residential 

zoning district. The property, located along Bernard Road approximately .86 miles north 

of the City of Bernard, is legally is described as Lot 2 Meloy 2nd Addition Section 22, 

(T87N R1E), Prairie Creek Township, Dubuque County Iowa. 

 

Ms. O’Shea stated this property is 1-acre and has a home with a couple of small sheds on 

it. The owners would like to expand the porch to 8’ x 30’ and will need a variance in 

order to add the porch to a legal nonconforming residence. Two letters were sent, two 

letters were delivered and the City of Bernard was notified. There were no comments 

submitted regarding this case.  

 

Speaking to the Board was Mike Merfeld, 2312 Bernard Rd, Bernard. Mr. Hickson 

administered the following Oath asking the participant to raise his right hand.  “Do you 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  7 

solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?”  He 

said yes. 

 

Mr. Merfeld stated they are in the process of remodeling the home. The home was built in 

1909 and the foundation leaks badly. He would like to extend the current porch along the 

front of the home to help keep the water away from the home. With making the porch 8’ 

deep it would allow more space once, the concrete and walls are put up.  

 

Mr. Hickson asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or against this case? No one  

spoke.  

 

A motion was made by Ms. Burds, seconded by Ms. Nolan to approve the variance. 

The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-0. 
 

D.  PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

 

E.  OLD BUSINESS:  

1) Discussion on Court Hearing     

Ms. O’Shea stated there was a decision made on the Shooting Range Court Case. The 

decision was in favor of Dubuque County. The case can be appealed until August 20, 

2016. If it is not appealed the, Drug Task Force may go ahead with their plans.  

 

F.   NEW BUSINESS: 

1)  Discussion on extension of BA#06-19-15 Steve & Laura Fuller and a request of                                 

     relocating the home 

 

Speaking to the Board was Steve Fuller, 13167 Somerset Hills Dr, Dubuque. Mr. 

Hickson administered the following Oath asking the participant to raise his right hand.  

“Do you solemnly swear you will tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 

truth?”  He said yes. 

 

Mr. Fuller stated they would like to extend their building permit, which expired on July 

22, 2016. When they were initially granted a Special Use Permit they were going to build 

the new home when they sold their old home. They just sold their old home about 6 

weeks ago and can now start to build. He is asking for a six-month extension. 

 

A motion was made by Ms. Burds, seconded by Ms. Nolan to grant a six-month 

extension. The motion passed by a vote of 3-0. Mr. Hickson, Ms. Burds & Ms. Nolan 

in favor. Mr. Koppes abstained. 

    

2) Discussion with the Board Members about future Special Use Permits 

Ms. O’Shea stated there have been quite a few zoning cases lately that are Industrial uses 

in the middle of the county that the Board of Supervisors cannot justify allowing as spot 

zoning. The only other option is for the business to move when they are denied the 

rezoning request. The Board of Supersvisors and the Zoning Office are looking to allow 

home based businesses in the county. Ms. O’Shea has compared what other counties 

policies are and most of the businesses are in the A-1 district. Mr. Koppes said he would 

be against the change. He feels a business belongs in a business district. Ms. O’Shea said 

it would just be an option for people. It would have restrictions such as uses allowed, 

noise, smell, traffic and size. It is something that is being discussed with the Board of 



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes –August 2, 2016 

  8 

Supervisors and the Zoning Board and will take a while to work through. She will keep 

the Board updated. 

 

G.   ADJOURNMENT:   A motion was made by Ms. Burds, seconded by Mr. Hickson 

and passed unanimously to adjourn. Vote: 4-0.  The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m.   

 

 


